
 

 

 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE AND AGENDA OF THE WEST BRANCH CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING SCHEDULED TO CONVENE AT 7:00 P.M. MONDAY, JUNE 25, 2018 

IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 110 NORTH POPLAR STREET, WEST 

BRANCH, IOWA 
 
Mayor Roger Laughlin mayor@westbranchiowa.org 
Mayor Pro Tem Colton Miller mcolton@rocketmail.com 
Council Member Jordan Ellyson Jordanellyson@gmail.com 
Council Member Brian Pierce brianapierce@outlook.com 
Council Member Jodee Stoolman j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com 
Council Member Nick Goodweiler nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com 
City Administrator Redmond Jones II rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org 
City Attorney Kevin Olson kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com 
Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick    leslie@westbranchiowa.org 

 
Please note:  Most written communications to or from government officials regarding government business 

are public records available to the public and media upon request.  Your e-mail communications may 

therefore be subject to public disclosure. 

 

AGENDA 

A. Call to Order 

 

B. Opening Ceremonies 
 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 
2. Welcome 

 

C. Roll Call 

 

D. Guest Speaker, Presentations and Proclamations   

 
E. Public Comment 

Anyone wishing to address the City Council may come forward when invited; please state your 

name and address for the record. Public comments are typically limited to three minutes, and 

written comments may be submitted to the Deputy City Clerk. Special instructions for public 

comments will be provided at the meeting if a public hearing or quasi-judicial matter is scheduled 

on the agenda. 

 

F. Approve Agenda / Consent Agenda / Move to Action 
Routine items and items not anticipated to be controversial are placed on the Consent Agenda to 

expedite the meeting.  If a Council member, staff member or member of the Public wishes to discuss 

any item on the Consent Agenda, they can request the item be removed from the Consent Agenda 

for discussion.  The remaining items on the Consent Agenda will be voted on with one motion being 

made for all items on the Consent Agenda 
 

1. Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting June 4, 2018. 

mailto:mayor@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:mcolton@rocketmail.com
mailto:Jordanellyson@gmail.com
mailto:brianapierce@outlook.com
mailto:j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com
mailto:nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com
mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com
mailto:leslie@westbranchiowa.org


 

 

2. Motion to Approve Destruction of Certain Records with Shred-it Services Listed on Records 
Destruction Form as per the Record Retention Manual for Iowan Cities.   

3. Motion to Approve West Branch Fire Department Class B Beer (BB) (Includes Wine Coolers) 
with Outdoor Service for Hoover’s Hometown Days.  

4. Motion to Approve Class E Liquor license with privileges: Class B Carryout Wine permit, 
Class C Carryout Beer permit, and Sunday Sales permit for Kum & Go, LC, dba Kum & Go 
#254. 

5. Motion to Approve a Consultant Contract with Rebecca Knoche for the Services of filming 
City Council Meetings. 

6. Motion to Approve the Library Board Appointment of Allen G. Eakes. 
7. Resolution 1723 – Approving the Cedar County Solid Waste Commission 28E Agreement. 
8. Motion to Approve “The Down Under” Hoover’s Hometown Days – Outdoor Liquor Permit 

Request. 
9. Motion to Approve Claims Report. 

 

G. Public Hearing / Non-Consent Agenda 
 
1. Discussion Item: The West Branch Meadows Subdivision is beginning their planning 

process for phase 4 of their development.  It is requiring decisions regarding aging 
sewer infrastructure. 

2. Third Reading, Ordinance 754 – Approve the Rezoning of the following described 
parcel located at 116 N. 1st Street, West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa; Rezoning parcel 
#0500-13-05-357-015-0 from CB-1 Central Business District to RB-1 Residential 

Business District. 
3. Resolution 1724 – Approving an Agreement not to exceed $50,000 for the services of 

site preparation to Barnhart’s Custom Services, LLC. 
4. Third Reading, Ordinance 751, Amending Chapter 69.08 entitled “No Parking Zone” 

(add 67) to prohibit Semi Truck and other parking on Tidewater Drive.  
5. Third Reading, Ordinance 752 Amending Chapter 76 (sec. 76.02, 76.10, 76.11, and 

76.14) the Current Bicycle Regulations to Include the Operation of Skate Boards.  
6. Resolution 1722 – A Resolution Setting Salaries for Appointed Officers and 

Employees of the City of West Branch, Iowa for Fiscal Year 2019.  
7. Motion to Approve an Updated West Branch Schedule of Fees.   
8. Discussion Item: Care Initiatives (Crestview) Easement Access and Fence Request. 
9. Resolution 1725 – Authorizing the City Administrator to enter into a Settlement 

Agreement and Release with French Reneker Associates Inc. Engineers & Surveyors 
of Fairfield, Iowa. 

10. First Reading of New Ordinance: Planned Unit Development 
 

H. Reports 
 

1. City Administrator’s Report 
2. City Attorney Report 
3. Other Staff Hearsays 

 

I. Comments from Mayor and Council Members 

 

J. Adjournment 



 

 

(The following is a synopsis of the minutes of the West Branch City Council meeting. A video recording is available for 

inspection on the City of West Branch Website at www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos. The minutes are 

not approved until the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting.) 

 

West Branch, Iowa                                     City Council Meeting                               June 4, 2018  
Council Chambers                                                                                                      7:00 p.m. 

  
Mayor Laughlin called the West Branch City Council meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  Mayor Laughlin invited the 

Council, Staff and members of the audience to stand and led the group in the Pledge of Allegiance.   Roll call: 

Council members:  Colton Miller, Nick Goodweiler, Jodee Stoolman and Jordan Ellyson were present.  Brian 

Pierce was absent.  Laughlin welcomed the audience and the following City staff:  City Administrator Redmond 

Jones, City Attorney Kevin Olson, Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick, Finance Officer Gordon Edgar, Park & 

Recreation Director Melissa Russell, Library Director Nick Shimmin, Public Works Director Matt Goodale and 

Police Chief Mike Horihan. 

 

 

GUEST SPEAKER, PRESENTATIONS, AND PROCLAMATIONS 

 

Movie Concept, Dustin Hills, Little Rose Bowl Productions  

Dustin Hills introduced himself as a native from West Branch who grew up here and played football.  Hills said 

he is working on producing a movie on the West Branch Bears football team, pending approval from the West 

Branch Iowa School District.  The documentary will take you behind the scenes to team workouts, meeting, 

practices, games, coaches and to the families (past and present) that make West Branch football such a success.  

Hills said the film would air on Amazon Prime Movies and film festivals around America and stated that all 

proceeds made from the movie would be put into a scholarship or classroom fund.   

 

Safety Committee update, Jose Gongora 

Gongora gave an update on the committee past twelve months which included fourteen meetings, creation of 

several safety protocols and safety checklists.  Gongora said that each city department had representation on the 

committee and noted that several issues were identified and had been addressed. 

 

Worker’s Comp Insurance update, Kyle Austen, Insurance Associates 

Austen presented the new Worker’s Comp proposal and said that the mod factor had a significant drop since last 

year (due in part by the work of the Safety Committee).  Austen was pleased to announce a $30,000 decrease in 

premiums for FY19.   

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

None.   

 

APPROVE AGENDA/CONSENT AGENDA/MOVE TO ACTION 
   

Motion to approve minutes for City Council meeting May 21, 2018. 

Resolution 1718 – Approving a liability insurance proposal with ICAP. 

Resolution 1719 – Approving Workers Compensation insurance proposal with IMWCA.  

Motion to approve cigarette permit renewals for fiscal year 2019. 

Motion to approve claims report. 
 
EXPENDITURES     6/4/2018  
 
BAKER & TAYLOR INC.     BOOKS      180.17  
BANKERS ADVERTISING COMPANY   NAME BADGE     20.58  
BUSINESS RADIO SALES    RADIO REPAIRS     80.00  

 Consent Item 1 

http://www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos


 

 

CDW GOVERNMENT INC.    COMPUTERS     2,685.39  
CEDAR COUNTY AUDITOR    ELECTION SERV-HOTEL/MOTEL TAX   1,884.62  
CEDAR VALLEY OUTFITTERS    AMMUNITION     390.00  
CJ COOPER & ASSOCIATES    ALCOHOL BREATH TEST SUPPLIES   132.65  
CULLIGAN WATER TECHNOLOGIES   WATER SOFTENER SERVICE    35.20  
D&R PEST CONTROL     PEST CONTROL SERVICE    70.00  
DEMCO      SHIRT      15.25  
EMERGENCY MEDICIAL PRODUCTS INC   MEDICAL SUPPLIES     220.85  
F&B COMMUNICATIONS INC    EQUIPMENT REPAIR     559.98  
FELD FIRE EQUIPMENT CO. INC    VEHICLE REPAIR     155.00  
FULL COMPASS SYSTEMS LTD    MICROPHONE & ACCESSORIES    951.60  
HD CLINE COMPANY     REPAIR PARTS     122.82  
KIRKWOOD COMM. COLLEGE    TRAINING      14.00  
LIBERTY COMMUNICATIONS    LIBERTY COMMUNICATIONS    1,289.16  
LYNCH'S PLUMBING INC    SERVICE CALL-LIBRARY    157.00  
MATT PARROTT/STOREY KENWORTHY   MATT PARROTT/STOREY KENWORTHY   318.39  
MEDIACOM     CABLE SERVICE     40.90  
METROPOLITAN COMPOUNDS INC   CHEMICALS     1,124.80  
MISCELLANEOUS VENDORS    REFUND: VARIOUS     105.00  
MUNICIPAL SUPPLY INC.    WATER METERS & ACCESSORIES    3,677.50  
OLSON, KEVIN D     LEGAL SERVICES JUNE 2018    1,500.00  
PACHECO, HUGO VINICIO HERNANDEZ   REMODEL RESTROOMS    4,000.00  
PDT SERVICES     COOLER REPAIR     222.48  
RATHJE CONSTRUCTION CO    TREE GRINDING     8,250.00  
SHIMMIN, NICK     LIBRARY WEB HOSTING RENEWAL   131.88  
SHRED-IT USA     DOCUMENT DESTRUCTION    48.15  
TRUGREEN PROCESSING CENTER    LAWN SERVICE LIONS FIELD    376.00  
UPS      SEWER-SHIPPING     21.82  
VEENSTRA & KIMM INC.    STORMWATER CONSULT-NPS    182.35  
VEENSTRA & KIMM INC.    PV MULTI FAMILY REVIEW    265.35  
VEENSTRA & KIMM INC.    310-COLLEGE ST BRIDGE FINAL DESIGN   928.60  
VEENSTRA & KIMM INC.    P & Z LOT SITE PLAN REVIEW    332.00 
  
VEENSTRA & KIMM INC.    POPLAR STREET PAVING COORDINATION-WBCS 83.00  
VEENSTRA & KIMM INC.    WASTEWATER TREATMENT FAC-PRELIM EVAL 2,159.00  
VERIZON WIRELESS     WIRELESS SERVICE     874.00  
WEST BRANCH REPAIRS    VEHICLE REPAIR     80.00  
 
TOTAL            33,685.49  
 
PAYROLL      6/1/2018      44,405.05  
 
PAID BETWEEN MEETINGS    
 
GALAXY CLEANING SERVICES    JANITOR SERVICE     1,278.66  
HORIHAN, MIKE     AMMUNITION     199.99  
J & M DISPLAYS INC     FIREWORKS     25,000.00  
JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL    SUPPLIES, TREES     540.55  
UPS      SHIPPING      21.82  
COMMUNITY STATE BANK    PRINCIPAL & INTEREST    49,850.48  
 
TOTAL            76,891.50  
 
GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES          154,982.04  
 
 
FUND TOTALS    
001   GENERAL FUND   58,503.08 
022   CIVIC CENTER   397.74 
031   LIBRARY   11,614.26 
110   ROAD USE TAX   11,281.98 
112   TRUST AND AGENCY  4,808.89 
226   DEBT SERVICE   49,850.48 
310   COLLEGE STREET BRIDGE  928.6 
600   WATER FUND   8,830.90 
610   SEWER FUND   8,583.76 



 

 

740   STORM WATER UTILITY  182.35 
 
GRAND TOTAL   154,982.04 
 
 

Motion by Miller, second by Goodweiler to approve agenda/consent agenda items.  AYES:  Miller, Goodweiler, 

Stoolman, Ellyson.  Absent:  Pierce.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   
 

 

 

 

Public Hearing: A Public Hearing on the matter of a Rezoning of the following described parcel located at 116 

N.1st Street, West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa.  Rezoning parcel #0500-13-05-357-015-0 from CB-1 to RB-1. 

Mayor Laughlin opened the public hearing at 7:23 p.m.  There were no comments on the subject.  Public hearing 

closed at 7:24 p.m. 

 

First Reading, Ordinance 754 – Approve the Rezoning of the following described parcel located at 116 N. 1st 

Street, West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa; Rezoning parcel #0500-13-05-357-015-0 from CB-1 Central Business 

District to RB-1 Residential Business District. /Move to action. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Miller to approve first reading of Ordinance 754.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Miller, 

Ellyson, Stoolman.  Absent:  Pierce.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

Motion to Suspend the Rules, and collapse the 2nd and 3rd readings of Ordinance No. 754. / Move to action. 

Councilperson Miller stated that he would not support collapsing both readings and said that the process should 

be played out as designed.  He did agree however to support the second reading at this meeting to allow affected 

residents another opportunity to voice their concerns at the next City Council meeting. 

Motion by Stoolman, second by Goodweiler to suspend the rules and amend the agenda to add the second 

reading of Ordinance 754.  AYES:  Stoolman, Goodweiler, Miller, Ellyson.  Absent:  Pierce.  NAYS:  None.  

Motion carried.   

 

Second Reading, Ordinance 754 – Approve the Rezoning of the following described parcel located at 116 N. 1st 

Street, West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa; Rezoning parcel #0500-13-05-357-015-0 from CB-1 Central Business 

District to RB-1 Residential Business District. /Move to action. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Miller to approve the second reading of Ordinance 754.  AYES:  Goodweiler, 

Miller, Ellyson, Stoolman.  Absent:  Pierce.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried. 

 

Second Reading, Ordinance 751, Amending Chapter 69.08 entitled “No Parking Zone” (add 67) to prohibit Semi 

Truck and other parking on Tidewater Drive. / Move to action. 

Motion by Stoolman, second by Miller to approve second reading of Ordinance 751.  AYES:  Stoolman, Miller, 

Ellyson, Goodweiler.  Absent:  Pierce.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

Second Reading, Ordinance 752 Amending Chapter 76 (sec. 76.02, 76.10, 76.11, and 76.14) the Current Bicycle 

Regulations to Include the Operation of Skate Boards. / Move to action. 

Motion by Stoolman, second by Miller to approve second reading of Ordinance 752.  AYES:  Stoolman, Miller, 

Goodweiler, Ellyson.  Absent:  Pierce.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

Resolution 1706 – Approving employee salary adjustments for extra duties assigned and required. / Move to 

action. 

Motion by Ellyson, second by Goodweiler to approve Resolution 1706.  AYES:  Ellyson, Goodweiler, Miller, 

Stoolman.  Absent:  Pierce.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 



 

 

Resolution 1720 – Approving partial pay estimate # 2 in the amount of $362,865.81 to Needham Excavating Inc. 

for the Cubby Park Improvement Project. / Move to action. 

Cody Buelt, Fehr Graham gave an update on the Cubby Park project and said that the rough grading was 

approximately ninety percent complete, irrigation was being installed at the ball fields, and the concession stand 

would be started later this week.  Buelt said they were still having some issues with water coming out of the hill 

to the north and they were working on a solution to address the problem.  Buelt also said that the project was on 

track with the revised schedule.  Stoolman questioned the outlets to the creek and wondered if it would cause any 

future problems for bank erosion.  Stoolman also questioned if the creek banks would be cleaned up as part of 

this project.  Buelt said that creek clean-up was not part of the current project.  After further discussion on the 

subject, the Council directed City Administrator Jones to request a quote on a potential creek clean-up from Fehr 

Graham. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Miller to approve Resolution 1720.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Miller, Ellyson, 

Stoolman.  Absent:  Pierce.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

 

Resolution 1721 – Approving change order # 3, revised in the amount by $9,672.30 on the Cubby Park 

Improvements Project. / Move to action. 

Cody Buelt, Fehr Graham explained the change order includes two items.  A booster pump has been determined 

to be needed to properly operate the irrigation system and storm sewer pipe that was inadvertently omitted on the 

original bid. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Ellyson to approve Resolution 1721.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Ellyson, Miller, 

Stoolman.  Absent:  Pierce.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

Motion to approve a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the Partners of “Cedar’s Edge Golf Course & 

Little Light’s Events”. /Move to action. 

City Administrator Jones opened the conversation and provided some incentive options for the Council to 

consider for a future event center at the Cedar’s Edge Golf Course.  Jones explained that the MOU is a tool to 

allow negotiations to occur between the City and the prospective business owners.  The MOU is not legally 

binding nor a financial agreement.   

 

Finance Officer Gordon Edgar requested to address the Council to remind them of the city’s current financial 

state while considering offering incentives to a private business.  Edgar stated the City’s current debt is about 

nine million dollars and yearly loans payments are approximately one million dollars each year for the next 

seven years.  He continued and said the City has aging infrastructure needs which includes some residents 

without adequate fire protection.  Edgar also expressed his concern with the College Street Bridge project that 

still has some unknown future financial impacts on the City’s already tight budget as well as the real possibility 

of having to build a DNR mandated sewage facility.  Edgar closed with reminding the Council that the needs of 

the City and its residents should be above the wants of private citizens. 

Motion by Goodweiler, second by Ellyson.  AYES:  Goodweiler, Ellyson, Stoolman, Miller.  Absent:  Pierce.  

NAYS:  None.  Motion carried.   

 

Discussion - Staff seeking direction in responding to an unsolicited proposal from Barnhart’s Custom Services, 

LLC for the services of site preparation. 

Laughlin gave his comments on the proposal received from Barnhart and said he would prefer that the former 

Croell site get cleaned up sooner than later.  Laughlin said there was money set aside for this project and 

suggested the Council consider the proposal.  The Council discussed the matter further and directed the City 

Attorney to bring back a written agreement for the next meeting. 

 

Discussion - Planned Unit Development (PUD) 

Laughlin opened the discussion and said that this version of the PUD had been through several revisions and 

recently approved by the Planning & Zoning Commission (P&Z).  P&Z Chairperson John Fuller presented the 



 

 

PUD to the commission and stated that this was intended for the former Croell Redi-Mix site.  He explained how 

the PUD works and the process the City would follow when receiving developer’s requests.  Fuller asked the 

Council to review the document and provide any comments back to the Commission.  Fuller said he hoped to get 

the PUD Ordinance passed so the site can be re-developed.   
    

 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 

Jones said he is working on developing financing strategies for the Waste Water Project.  He also said that with 

the fireworks test shoot that was held last week, it has been determined that a press release will be needed to 

indicate best viewing spots for the Hoover’s Hometown Days fireworks display this year.  Jones also reported 

that city staff would be attending a Small City Workshop, ‘”Strategically Investing in your Community” hosted 

by the Iowa League of Cities later this week.   

 

 

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 

Olson said that he was finishing up the updates to the Urban Renewal Plan and should have that ready to go 

through the Planning & Zoning Commission at their next meeting.  He also said that he would be going to court 

later this week for a nuisance property in West Branch.   

 

STAFF REPORTS  

Park & Recreation Director Russell presented a rendering of the Cubby Park concession stand and said that 

materials would be ordered this week.   

 

Public Works Director Goodale provided an update on his departments May 2018 activities.  

 

Police Chief Horihan told the Council that his department was hosting a domestic violence conference on June 

14th.  Horihan said that the conference is closed to the public but open to professionals and school staff.   

 

COMMENTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBER 

Mayor Laughlin told the Council that he had applied for a grant from the Roy J. Carver Charitable Trust for 

playground equipment at Cubby Park and that he was happy to announce that the City had been awarded a 

$25,000 grant.   

 

Councilperson Stoolman asked what the nuisance process was and said she would like to provide a list to city 

staff. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn by Ellyson, second by Miller.  Motion carried on a voice vote.  City Council meeting adjourned 

at 9:20 p.m.   

 

 

 

 

                           _________________________________________  

                                          Roger Laughlin, Mayor  

 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________________________ 

                   Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk  

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  June 25, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve Destruction of Certain Records with Shred-it 

Services Listed on Records Destruction Form per the Record 

Retention Manual for Iowa Cities.  

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick 

DATE:  June 20, 2018 

     

BACKGROUND: 

The Records Retention Manual is intended to assist public officials in managing the 

retention of records that are produced by city business. It is intended to be a working 

document that has been put together with the assistance of city and county officials. It is 

understood that public offices do not have the space to store all records for all time so this 

manual is intended to assist public officials by outlining a schedule for destroying records 

that are no longer required to be retained. The Records Retention Manual recommends 

retention periods that take into account the Code of Iowa and the Iowa Administrative Code. 

There is not a law concerning all public records; however, the Records Retention Manual is 

considered to be “best practice” for state, county, and city officials. 

 

See Records Destruction Form. 
 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Motion – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

 Consent Item 2 



 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  June 25, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve West Branch Fire Department Class B Beer 

(BB) (Includes Wine Coolers) with Outdoor Service for Hoover’s 

Hometown Days. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  June 20, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND: 

Approve Class B Beer (BB) (Includes Wine Coolers) with Outdoor Service for  

the West Branch Fire Department for Hoover’s Hometown Days 2018: 

 

Friday, August 3, 2018, 3 p.m. to midnight 

Saturday, August 4, 2018, 11:00 a.m. to midnight. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Motion – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 Consent Item 3 



 

 

  
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  June 25, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve Class E Liquor license with privileges: Class B 

Carryout Wine permit, Class C Carryout Beer permit, and Sunday 

Sales permit for Kum & Go, LC, dba Kum & Go #254. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  June 20, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND: 

 

Approve Class E Liquor license with privileges: Class B Carryout Wine permit, Class C 

Carryout Beer permit, and Sunday Sales permit for Kum & Go, LC, dba Kum & Go #254.  

Renewal effective 7/1/2018 to 6/30/2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Motion – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 Consent Item 4 



 

 

  
 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  June 25, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve a Consultant Contract with Rebecca Knoche for 

the Services of filming City Council Meetings. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  June 20, 2018 

     

BACKGROUND: 

 

Videographer for the Council Meetings, Rebecca Knoche, resigned from her position at the 

West Branch Public Library.  She wishes to continue her position as videographer of the 

West Branch Council Meetings and has agreed to do so as an independent contractor.  

Attached is a Consulting Agreement for this service.   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approval Motion – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 Consent Item 5 



 

 

  CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 
 

THIS AGREEMENT entered into by and between the City of West Branch, Iowa 

(hereafter “City”) and Rebecca Knoche (hereafter “Knoche”). 

  

WHEREAS, Knoche is capable of providing cable access videography services (the 

“Services”); and the City desires to engage the services of Knoche to provide said Services; and 

 

WHEREAS, the parties desire to enter into an agreement to engage Knoche as an 

independent contractor to perform the Services. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. Independent Contractor. Knoche expressly agrees that this Agreement does not create any 

rights as an employee of City, and that City is engaging Knoche as an independent 

contractor to provide the Services to the City on an “as needed” basis. 
 
2. Compensation for Services. The City shall compensate Knoche for the Services as follows: 
 

a. The City shall pay Knoche the sum of $75 per event/meeting to record video of the said 

event/meeting for use by the City of West Branch.   

b. The City shall pay Knoche after the second regularly scheduled City Council meeting 

upon submission of an invoice for the Services to the City Clerk. 
 
3. Use of City building and equipment. Knoche, upon request of the City Administrator, shall 

be allowed to access City Hall and the City equipment during recording event times. 
 
4. Notification. The City shall provide notification of upcoming meetings by inclusion in 

email notification lists for each Council meeting. 
 
5. Insurance. The City shall provide liability insurance to Knoche under the City’s policy. 
 
6. Termination. Knoche or the City may terminate this Agreement by providing 30 days 

written notice to the other party. 
 
7. Indemnification. That in consideration of the mutual covenants of the parties and for value 

received, Knoche agrees to indemnify and save harmless, City and its officers, employees, 

agents, and their successors, assigns and personal representatives from any claim, action, 

liability, loss, damage, or suit arising from the Services provided herein. 
 
8. Form 1099. As required by law, the City will issue Knoche a Form 1099 showing the 

amount paid to Knoche as an independent contractor during each calendar year this 

Agreement is in place. 

 

Dated this _____ day of ________________________, 2018. 
 
 

 

_________________________    ______________________________ 
 Rebecca Knoche     Roger Laughlin, Mayor 
 

 

ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 



 

 

   
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  June 25, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Library Board Appointment of Allen G. 

Eakes. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Nick Shimmin 

DATE:  June 20, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

22.02 of City Code states The Board of Trustees of the Library, hereinafter referred to as 

the Board, consists of a total of (7) members and one nonresident.  All resident members 

are to be appointed by the Mayor with the approval of the County Board of Supervisors. 

 

Mr. Eakes has submitted an application for the library board of trustees.  Mr. Eakes and his 

family have been an active library user for many years.  He appears qualified for the position 

from his application and the library staff believe that his viewpoint will be valuable on the 

board.   

 

There is a vacancy opening on since July 1, 2018 with a term expiration for Cary Wiesner 

who will not be continuing.  The expiration date for the seat will be June 30, 2021.   

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Appointment – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Consent Item 6 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

   
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  June 25, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1723 – Approving the Cedar County Solid Waste 

Commission 28E Agreement. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones, City Administrator 

DATE:  June 20, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

The Cedar County Solid Waste Commission 28E agreement expires in July of 2018.  The 

Commission is comprised of the following members: Mechanicsville, Stanwood, Clarence, 

Lowden, Tipton, West Branch, Durant, Wilton, and the Cedar County Board of Supervisors.  

The current agreement is the third of three ten year agreements. 

 

Per the County Recorder’s office and the County Attorney, each individual city is requested 

to pass a resolution authorizing their mayor to sign the new 28E agreement.  When that 

resolution authorizing their mayor to sign the new 28E agreement.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Consent Item 7 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

RESOLUTION 1723 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE CEDAR COUNTY SOLID WASTE 

COMMISSION 28E AGREEMENT 

 

WHEREAS, The City of West Branch shares the Cedar County Solid Waste 

Commission’s vision of an integrated solid waste management system; and   

 

 WHEREAS, the 28E proposed is a continuation of a previous long standing 

agreement; and  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the West Branch City Council hereby 

authorizes the Mayor to sign the Cedar County Solid Waste Commission 28E agreement.  Such 

agreement is to enter into membership of the Commission for the purpose of disposal of solid 

waste and acquisition, operation and use of public disposal areas and such other related 

purposes as the Commission decides.  This agreement is between the City of West Branch and 

the Cedar County Board of Supervisors and will commence July 1, 2018 and continue until 

June 30, 2028.   

 
* * * * * * * * 

Passed and approved this 25th day of June, 2018. 

   

  

      

_________________________________ 

                                                         Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 

   
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  June 25, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve “The Down Under” Hoover’s Hometown Days 

– Outdoor Liquor Permit Request 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  June 20, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

Approve Class C Liquor License (LC) (Commercial) with Outdoor Service for  

The Down Under for Hoover’s Hometown Days 2018: 

 

Friday, August 3, 2018, 3 p.m. to 11:00 p.m. 

Saturday, August 4, 2018, 11:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. 

Sunday, August 5, 2018, 12:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m.  

 

Tables and chairs will be placed on the sidewalk and grassy areas on the east side of the 

Hoover House.  Fencing will surround the 24’ x 60’ fenced in area in Heritage Square Park. 

 

(Applicant has asked for a short presentation – Item should be pulled to grant presentation 

then placed back on consent agenda.) 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Motion – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 8 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

 

   
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  June 4, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Claims Report 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  May 30, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

These are routine expenditures that include such items as payroll, budget expenditures, and 

other financial items that relate to council approved items and/or other day to day 

operational disclosures. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Claims Report – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

  

Consent Item 9 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  June 25, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: The West Branch Meadows Subdivision is 

beginning their planning process for phase 4 of their development. It 

is requiring decisions regarding aging sewer infrastructure. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones, City Administrator 

DATE:  June 20, 2018  
     
BACKGROUND:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Click here to enter a date. 

Click here to enter text. 

Click here to enter text. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek City Council Direction 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 Non Consent Item 1 

BACKGROUND:  

 

Based on the Research of Public Works Director Goodale it appears that Greenview was 

annexed into the City Limits in the late 1960’s. The sewer main to connect Greenview to 

the city sewer system was designed but never installed until the late 1970’s or early 

1980’s. That makes this main somewhere around 40 years old. 

 

The sewer main formerly known as the Stuelke Line located in the present day KLM 

Investment property known as The Meadows is a topic of concern as it relates to its age, 

design, and current day capacity.  It is clear it is not a modern standards and could not 

handle the demand of 48 new homes.  It is also clear there are system failures based on the 

amount of Inflow and Infiltration (I&I) levels found in our waste water treatment.  This 

places unwanted demands our treatment process and capacity.  

 

The City Administrator would like direction regarding the merits of pursuing development 

agreement talk involving the use of TIF as a funding tool to replace this aging 

infrastructure.  A potential Public Private Partnership agreement could allow developer to 

construct a new line earlier at lower prices with the understanding to receiving a TIF 

payment(s) over several years. 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 

June 21, 2018  

Memo concerning replacement of the sewer main formerly known as the Stuelke Line 

located in the present day KLM Investment property known as The Meadows. 

 

Redmond, 

 

From the information available to me it appears that Greenview was annexed into the City 

Limits in the late 1960’s. The sewer main to connect Greenview to the city sewer system 

was designed but never installed until the late 1970’s or early 1980’s. That makes this 

main somewhere around 40 years old. It appears that residents of Greenview were 

assessed for their portion of the work associated  

with their property but I am unsure if they were  

assessed for this portion.  

 

The manholes are pre cast concrete and the main  

consists of 8” clay pipe. Due to their age, location  

and grade the manholes are a source of infiltration.  

Portions of this main are located in a waterway and 

are prone to infiltration issues. This main is located  

between the phase 1 and phase 3 area of the City’s 

I&I program. It has not been televised, but did show signs of large amounts of infiltration 

downstream of it during flow metering prior to 

putting the I&I plan into place in 2010. This sewer 

main is in need of replacement and I would support 

its total replacement. 

 

Thanks 

 

Matt Goodale 

Public Works Director 

City of West Branch 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  June 25, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Third Reading, Ordinance 754 Approve the Rezoning of the 

following described parcel located at 116 N.1st Street, West Branch, 

Cedar County, Iowa; Rezoning parcel #0500-13-05-357-015-0 from 

CB-1 Central Business District to RB-1 Residence Business District.  

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk & Kevin Olson City Attorney 

DATE:  June 20, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

David Poppen and wife Kami, have several rental properties in Iowa City, West Liberty and 

West Branch.  They recognize the need for affordable rental properties in West Branch and 

have offer accepted at 116 N. 1st St. contingent on the ability to rezone the property.  The 

property is currently zoned CB-1, which allows for rental property on the upper floor of the 

building.  The Poppen’s would like to remodel the lower level for living space making the 

building a duplex.  Rezoning to RB-1 would be needed to accomplish this.   
 
On May 1, 2018, Planning & Zoning approved the request contingent upon it meeting the 

required set-back of 25 feet from the front property line.  It was determined that the vestibule 

on the front of the building is only 19.5 feet, and thus the Poppen’s took their case to the 

Zoning Board of Adjustment on May 15, 2018.  The Board approved their request for a 

variance on the set-back for the vestibule only with additional contingencies as to not allow 

the front of the building to change in any way with regard to the 25 foot set-back 

requirement.  On May 29, 2018, Planning & Zoning held a public hearing on the rezoning 

and there was no public comment on the matter. 

  

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Third and Final Reading – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 2 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 754 
 
AN ORDINANCE RE-ZONING THAT CERTAIN PARCEL OF REAL PROPERTY 

LOCATED AT 116 N. 1ST STREET FROM CB-1 CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT TO 

RB-1 RESIDENCE BUSINESS DISTRICT. 

 

 WHEREAS, David and Kami Poppen (“Poppen”) have petitioned the City of 

West Branch for a zoning district amendment for 116 N. 1st Street, said parcel being 

legally described as:   
 

East ½ of Lot 3, Block 34 West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa (the 

 “Parcel”); 
  

 WHEREAS, Poppen has requested that the Parcel be rezoned to be located in an 

RB-1 Residence Business District, in place of an CB-1 Central Business District; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the West Branch Planning and Zoning Commission has 

recommended the City Council approve said rezoning request; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing has been held on said request pursuant to published 

notice thereof. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of West 

Branch, Iowa: 
 
 Section 1.  That the zoning map for the City of West Branch is hereby amended to 

show the Parcel being located in a RB-1 Residence Business District in place of an CB-1 

Central Business District.  
  
 Section 2.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

publication as by law provided. 
 
 Section 3.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of 

this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
 Section 4.  If any section, provision or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged to 

be invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of this 

ordinance as a whole or any part, section, or provision thereof not adjudged invalid or 

unconstitutional. 
 
Passed and approved this ____ day of __________________, 2018. 
 
 First Reading:   June 4, 2018 

 Second Reading: June 4, 2018 (suspended the rules) 

 Third Reading: June 25, 2018 

             

      ____________________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: ___________________________________ 

    Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk   



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  June 25, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1724 – Approving an Agreement not to exceed $50,000 

for the services of site preparation to Barnhart’s Custom Services, 

LLC. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Kevin Olson City Attorney 

DATE:  May 30, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
The property was purchased in 1989 by Croell Redi-mix, a cement company with more than 

130 locations in six states, and employs its own crew that not only pours foundations and 

walls but constructs plants.  Croell Redi-mix operated on a four-acre parcel at 325 East 

Green Street which is ranged north to south between Main Street and College Street.  While 

planning for a plant expansion at that site, the city proposed a land swap.  Instead of having 

this industrial use expand its operations in this transitional area that exist between a 

celebrated historic downtown with 14 buildings on the National Historic Register, and a 

well-established neighborhood known for its mature tree line and eclectic housing; the city 

pursued a land swap that exchanged 12 acres of industrial park property for the 

aforementioned 4 acre site.  The swap is nearing to conclusion, in the meantime we can 

consider site preparation services to make the site more enticing to potential developers.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 3 



 

 

CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT 

 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered this            day of                              , 2018, by and 

between the City of West Branch, Iowa, 110 N. Poplar, West Branch, Iowa 52358, hereinafter 

referred to as “CITY;” and Barnhart’s Custom Services, LLC, 412 E. Main Street, West Branch, 

Iowa 52358 , hereinafter referred to as the "CONTRACTOR." 

 

WHEREAS, the City has entered into an agreement to acquire the former Croell site at 325 

E. Green Street; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has heretofore deemed it necessary and desirable to 

remove debris and buildings and crush the existing concrete into gravel for possible sale in order to 

“clean-up” the site for future redevelopment (the “Services”); and 

 

WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR has submitted a proposal to perform the Services; and 

 

WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR is qualified and capable of providing the Services 

according to the schedule listed below; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is now necessary and appropriate to memorialize the agreement between the 

CITY and the CONTRACTOR as follows: 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY AND THE CONTRACTOR, FOR CONSIDERATION 

HEREINAFTER SET FORTH, DO MUTUALLY AGREE TO THE TERMS AND 

CONDITIONS SET FORTH BELOW. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 

 

Practices in connection with or while rendering services hereunder and does hereby 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

V.  INDEMNIFICATION 
 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 
     Redmond Jones, City Administrator / City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1724 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AGREEMENT NOT TO EXCEED $50,000 

FOR THE SERVICES OF SITE PREPARATION TO BARNHART’S CUSTOM 

SERVICES, LLC. 

 

WHEREAS, The property was purchased in 1989 by Croell Redi-mix, a cement 

company operated on a four-acre parcel at 325 East Green Street and while planning for a 

plant expansion at that site, the city proposed a land swap.; and 

 

WHEREAS, Instead of having this industrial use expand its operations in this 

transitional area that exist between a celebrated historic downtown with 14 buildings on 

the National Historic Register, and a well-established neighborhood known for its mature 

tree line and eclectic housing; the city pursued a land swap that exchanged 12 acres of 

industrial park property for the aforementioned 4 acre site; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the swap is nearing to conclusion, in the meantime we can consider 

site preparation services to make the site more enticing to potential developers; and 

 

WHEREAS, Barnhart’s Custom Services, LLC. is a local business with 

experience in removing concrete, excavation, and site clean-up.  

 

WHEREAS, Barnhart’s Custom Services, LLC. has provided hourly prices for 

services that are not to exceed $50,000.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of West Branch, 

that Authorize the City Administrator to enter into said agreement not to exceed $50,000 

with Barnhart’s Custom Services, LLC for the services of site preparation for the site 

previously known as the Croell Redi-mix property. 

 

* * * * * * 

Passed and approved this 25th day of June, 2018. 

 

 

 

 

      ______________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / City Clerk 

 



 

 

    
 

              REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  June 25, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Third Reading, Ordinance 751, Amending Chapter 69.08 entitled 

“No Parking Zone” (add 67) to prohibit Semi Truck and other 

parking on Tidewater Drive 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Mike Horihan, Police Chief 

DATE:  June 21, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Third and Final Reading – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Tidewater drive is a narrow road that does not have street lights. It does have 

industrial type of traffic and is used by large trucks and semis. The city has received 

complaints where semis were parked on Tidewater, just East of Baker. This 

interferes with visibility and the traffic flow at that intersection.  The businesses are 

well off the traveled portion of Tidewater Drive and this ordinance would not 

interfere with their business sparking. Recommend the following gets added to our 

No Parking Ordinance.   

   
69.08 No Parking Zones. 

 

Provision being added 

67.  Both sides of Tidewater Dr. East of Baker Ave.  Parking would be allowed 

during special events, when authorized by the City Council or the Chief of Police. 

(Example- Kites over West Branch)   

 

 

Non Consent Item 4 



 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

Provision being added 

67.  Both sides of Tidewater Dr. East of Baker Ave.  Parking would be allowed during 

special events, when authorized by the City Council or the Chief of Police. (Example- 

Kites over West Branch)   

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

ORDINANCE 751 

 

ORDINANCE REGULATING NO PARKING ZONES. 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of West Branch, Iowa has jurisdiction to establish Parking 

Regulations within the corporate limits of the City of West Branch; and 
 
 WHEREAS, No Parking Zones shall mean, no stop, stand, or parking of a vehicle 

in any of the following designated no parking zones except when necessary to avoid 

conflict with other traffic or in compliance with the direction of a peace officer or traffic 

control signal; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has heretofore deemed it necessary and desirable to 

pass legislation regulating the no parking zones within the City. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that: 

1. Amendment.  Section 69.08 of the Code of Ordinances is hereby adding subsection 

sixty-Seven (67) with the following: 
 

67.  Both sides of Tidewater Dr. East of Baker Ave.  Parking would be allowed 

during special events, when authorized by the City Council or the Chief of Police. 

(Example- Kites over West Branch)   
 
2.  Conflicts.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances not specifically provided for and 

in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
3.  Adjudication.  If any section, provision, or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged 

to be invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the 

ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or 

unconstitutional. 
 
4.   Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage, 

approval and publication as required by law. 

 

First reading:  May 21, 2018 
 
Second reading: June 4, 2018 
 
Third Reading: June 25, 2018 

 

 

 

      __________________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 



 

 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  June 25, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Third Reading, Ordinance 752, Amending Chapter 76 entitled 

“Bicycle Regulations” (amending subsections 02, 10, 11 and 14) to 

include the “Operation of Skate Boards”. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Mike Horihan, Police Chief 

DATE:  June 21, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
We are trying to get a handle on kids ridding skateboards and riding bicycles at 

night.   Thinking of a $65.00 dollar fine, and would be handled as an unscheduled simple 

misdemeanor.       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Third and Final Reading – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 5 



 

 

 

Added Language 



 

 

 
 
 

 

 

  

 

Added Language 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 
 

Added Language 



 

 

 

ORDINANCE 752 

 

ORDINANCE AMENDING BICYCLE REGULATIONS. 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of West Branch, Iowa has jurisdiction to establish Bicycle 

Regulations within the corporate limits of the City of West Branch; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Bicycle Regulations shall apply whenever a bicycle is operated upon 

any street or upon any public path set aside for the exclusive use of bicycles, subject to 

those exceptions stated herein; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the intent of this amendment is not change the regulations regarding 

bicycling rather it is to include regulations related to the various forms of Skateboarding. 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has heretofore deemed it necessary and desirable to 

pass legislation regulating the bicycle and skateboard within the City. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that: 

1. Amendment.  Section 76.02, 76.10, 76.11, and 76.14 of the Code of Ordinances is 

hereby amending section seventy (70) with the following: 
 

76.02 TRAFFIC CODE APPLIES.  Every person riding a bicycle or using a 

skateboard or in-line skates upon a roadway shall be granted all of the rights and 

shall be subject to all of the duties applicable to the driver of a vehicle by  the  laws 

of  the State declaring  rules of  the  road applicable  to vehicles or by  the traffic 

code of the City applicable to the driver of a vehicle, except as to those provisions 

which by their nature  can  have  no  application.   Whenever such person 

dismounts or stops from a bicycle or using the skateboard or in-line skates, the 

person shall be subject to all regulations applicable to pedestrians. Skateboards and 

in-line skates shall not be allowed on city Streets, 20 minutes before dusk till 30 

minutes after dawn. 

(Code of Iowa, Sec. 321.234)  
 
76.10 TOWING. It is unlawful for any person riding a bicycle, skateboard or in-

line skates to be towed or to tow any other vehicle upon the streets of the City.  
 
76.11 IMPROPER RIDING. No person shall ride a bicycle, skateboard or inline 

skates in an irregular or reckless manner such as zigzagging, stunting, speeding or 

otherwise so as to disregard the safety of the operator or others. 
  
76.14 SPECIAL PENALTY. Any person violating the provisions of this chapter 

may, in lieu of the scheduled fine for bicyclists, skateboarders, or in-line skates or 

standard penalty provided for violations of the Code of Ordinances, allow the 

person’s bicycle to be impounded by the City for not less than five (5) days for the 

first offense, ten (10) days for a second offense and thirty (30) days for a third 

offense.  

 

2.  Conflicts.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances not specifically provided for and 

in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 



 

 

 
3.  Adjudication.  If any section, provision, or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged 

to be invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the 

ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or 

unconstitutional. 
 
4.   Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage, 

approval and publication as required by law. 

 

First reading:  May 21, 2018 
 
Second reading: June 4, 2018 
 
Third Reading: June 25, 2018 

 

 

 

      __________________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  June 25, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1722 – A Resolution Setting Salaries for Appointed 

Officers and Employees of the City of West Branch, Iowa for Fiscal 

Year 2019. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  June 21, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
The City Council approved the City Administrators proposed Total Employee 

Compensation for FY19 at the January 22, 2018 Special Budget Meeting.  The proposal 

also included moving department directors from an hourly wage to an annual salary and 

approved a 2% COLA for all other employees.   

 

The City Council also approved Resolution 1706, approving employee salary adjustments 

for Building Inspector Terry Goerdt and Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick to coincide with 

the FY19 salary increases. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 6 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1722 

 

A RESOLUTION SETTING SALARIES FOR APPOINTED OFFICERS AND 

EMPLOYEES OF THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, IOWA FOR FISCAL YEAR 2019. 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of West Branch, Iowa: 

 

Section 1.  The following persons and positions named shall be paid the salaries or hourly 

wages indicated and the City Clerk is authorized to issue warrants/checks, less legally 

required or authorized deductions for the amounts set out below, bi-weekly, and make such 

contributions to IPERS and Social Security or other purposes as required by law or 

authorization of the Council: 

 
Position                          Name                          Hourly/Wage             Basic Hours  

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Salaried Employees: 

 

City Administrator/Clerk Redmond Jones II                $91,800.00  Salaried 

 

Police Chief Mike Horihan                $77,202.16  Salaried 

 

Public Works Director  Matt Goodale                $67,250.44  Salaried 

 

Finance Officer Gordon Edgar                $55,846.93  Salaried 

 

Park & Recreation Director Melissa Russell                $48,557.29  Salaried 

 

 

Regular Full-Time: 

 

Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick                $22.02  40 

 

Police Sergeant John Hanna                $29.43  40 

 

Police Officer Derek Holmes                $24.58  40 

 

Police Officer Wesley Homeister                $22.90  40 

 

Lead Water Operator Tim Moss                $25.41  40 

 

Safety/Facilities Coordinator Paul O’Neil                $23.17  40 

 

Water/Wastewater Operator James Holland                $19.94  40 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

Regular Part-Time: 

 

PT Building Inspector Terry Goerdt                $36.00  20 

 

PT Police Officer Catherine Steen                $20.40  30 

 

PT Public Works Employee Gerry Brick                $16.83  25 

 

PT Public Works Employee Benjamin Litscher                $14.28  30 

 

PT Park & Rec Employee Jamie Tucker                $12.75             20 

 

 

SECTION 2.  All the above employees are subject to the City of West Branch Personnel 

Policies and Procedures applicable to their department. 

 

SECTION 3.  This resolution will be effective upon final passage of the City Council. 

 

SECTION 4.  The hourly wages and salaries established in this resolution shall be effective 

July 1, 2018. 

 

Passed and Approved this 25th day of June, 2018. 

 

                                                                                                                                         

____________________________________ 

                 Roger Laughlin, Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk   

     
  
  

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  June 25, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve an Updated West Branch Schedule of Fees.  

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  June 21, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
In an on-going effort to have sustainable city services that do not rely strictly on tax revenue 

staff have conducted a review of the West Branch Code of Ordinances to ensure current and 

effective cost representation for services offered.  After a staff review was conducted, 

several items were noted that were not currently listed in the West Branch Schedule of Fees.  

Staff recommends adding these fees to the Fee Schedule to improve transparency and 

accurate billing methods.   

 

Additionally, staff is reviewing current fees and will have future discussions with Council 

to identify potential fee increases. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Motion – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

 

 

 

 

Non Consent Item 7 



 

 

 
SCHEDULE OF FEES 

 

 

MONTHLY RESIDENTIAL SERVICE FEES 

 
Water Chapter 92.02     $7.79 per 1000 gallons 

Sewer Chapter 99.02     $7.79 per 1000 gallons 

Recycling (mandatory) Chapter 107.08   $4.75 per month 

Storm Water Utility Chapter 102.08   see graded scale 

(Plus applicable taxes) 

 

OTHER SERVICE CHARGES 
 

Late Payment Penalty Chapter 92.04(4)   10% of total delinquent bill 

Insufficient Funds Charge Chapter 92.04(6)  $30 

Water Service Deposit Chapter 92.10   $100 (refundable) 

Disconnect Fee for non-payment Chapter 92.05(4)  $20 (between 6:30 a.m. to 3:30 p.m.) 

       $50 (after 3:30 p.m.) 

Temporary Vacancy Disconnect/ 

Reconnect Fee Chapter 92.09    $50 

Testing of Meters Chapter 91.10    $50 

Water Meter Replacement Chapter 91.06, 91.07  actual cost to replace  

 

PUBLIC FACILITY USER FEES 

 
Town Hall Hourly Rental      $10/Hour  

Town Hall Daily Rental, no alcohol     $65/Day  

Town Hall Rental (for any period of time), with alcohol  $100/Day 

Refundable Alcohol Deposit (in addition to rental fee)  $100 

*Non-profit organizations are exempt from Town Hall Rental Fees. 

 

Beranek Park Shelter  No/chg   

Lions Field Shelter  No/chg   

Wapsi Park   No/chg 

Heritage Square  No/chg 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

VENDOR FEES 

 
West Branch Resident Nonprofit      $10  

West Branch Commercial Business     $25 

Non-Resident Nonprofit       $25 

Non-Resident Commercial Business      $50 

 

 

PEDDLER PERMIT FEES Chapter 122.05 

 

One day permit   $10  

One week permit   $25  

Up to six (6) months   $100   

One year of major part thereof $175  

 

 

ANIMAL REGISTRATION FEES Resolution 851 

 
Cats and Dogs: 

One Year Tag, per animal     $5  

Surcharge for non-spayed or neutered animal             $20 Resolution 1654  

Penalty for each late registration (after January 31st)             $5 

 

 

DOG PARK FEES Resolution 1228 

 
Single Day Pass     $5 

One Year Tag      $15 resident / $20 non-resident 

Two Year Tag      $30 resident / $40 non-resident 

Three Year Tag     $45 resident / $60 non-resident 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

WEST BRANCH MUNICIPAL CEMETERY FEES 
 

Cemetery Interment Rights (cemetery lots) 

 Expanded West Section    $250 (sold in multiples of 2) 

 Memorial Section     $100 (sold individually) 

 All other sections     $100 (sold in multiples of 2) 

 

Interment (summer)      $600 

Interment (winter)                 $600  

plus $40 for gas if conditions 

 require 

Saturdays       $100 extra 

Sundays & Holidays      $200 extra 

Infant                   $150 

Ashes        $125 

 

Disinterment – Cost varies according to size and location: 

Suitcase Type (baby)      $100 

Half-sized Vault (child)     $175-$400 

Full-sized Vault (adult)     $400-$700 

 

 

WEST BRANCH POLICE DEPARTMENT FEES 
Per Resolution 1593 

 

Administrative fee records request    $15 

Document redaction (minimum 1 hour)   $15/hour 

Video redaction (outside source)    Actual Cost 

USB Storage device      Actual Cost 

CD/DVD       $5 

Reserve officer event stand-by (minimum 1 hour)  $25/hour 

Police patrol vehicle stand-by (minimum 1 hour)  $100/hour  

Parking Fines Chapter 70.03     $15  

Disabilities Parking Fines Chapter 70.03    $100    

Impoundment of Vehicles Chapter 80.06    $3 for the 1st 5 days  

        $1 for each subsequent day 

 

FALSE ALARMS Chapter 37.02 
False Alarm (residential)     $50 per violation within 12 

months 

False Alarm (commercial)     $500 per violation  

  

 

 

 



 

 

NUISANCE ABATEMENT MUNICIPAL INFRACTION FEES 

 
Violations of Chapter 50.02(9) grass mowing and Chapter 136.03 snow removal from 

sidewalks, fees are billed to the property owner as follows per violation: 

 

Per Resolution 874 

 Operator     $38 / per hour 

 Utility tractor     $35 / per hour 

 Dump truck     $35 / per hour 

 Pick-up     $25 / per hour 

 6 foot mower     $10 / per hour 

 Bat wing mower    $20 / per hour 

 Riding lawn tractor    $20 / per hour 

 Chain saw     $15 / per hour 

 Trailer      $10 / per hour 

 String trimmer     $5 / per hour 

 Push mower     $7 / per hour 

 3rd party expenses    billed at cost 

 Snow removal     $50 / per sidewalk 

 Administrative Fee    $40 / per billing 

 

 

 

First Offense      $100 

Second Offense     $250 

Each Offense Thereafter    $500 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

SUBDIVISION FEES 

 
REZONING FEE 

Rezoning Fee Deposit Chapter 165.23(5)  $150 

 
SITE PLAN FEE Chapter 173.08 

Site Plan Application Fee $200 + Actual costs occurred for engineering 

review 

 

PLATTING FEE Chapter 170.03(2) 
Preliminary Plat & Final Plat submission $300 

Engineering Review of plats   Actual costs incurred 

 

WASTEWATER LIFT STATION CONNECTION FEE Chapter 100.03 
Calculated by City Engineer – See Exhibit B on file at City Hall 

 

 

BUILDING PERMIT FEES 
(Incl. plumbing, electrical & mechanical for new construction) 

 

Total Project Valuation  Fee  

Up to $500    $23.50 

$501 to $2000    $23.50 for the first $500 plus $3.05 for each 

additional 

      $100, or fraction thereof, to and including $2,000. 

$2001 to $25,000   $69.25 for the first $2000 plus $14 for each 

additional 

      $1000, or fraction thereof, to and including $25,000. 

$25,001 to $50,000   $391.25 for first $25,000 plus $10.10 for each 

additional 

      $1,000, or fraction thereof, to and including $50,000. 

$50,001 to $100,000   $643.75 for the first $50,000 plus $7 for each 

additional 

      $1,000, or fraction thereof, to and including 

$100,000. 

$100,001 to $500,000   $993.75 for first $100,000 plus $5.60 for each 

additional 

      $1,000, or fraction thereof, to and including 

$500,000. 

$500,001 to $1,000,000  $3,233.75 for first $500,000 plus $4.75 for each 

additional 

      $1,000, or fraction thereof, to and including 

$1,000,000. 

$1,000,001 and up  $5,608.75 for the first $1,000,000 plus $3.15 for each 

   Additional $1,000, or fraction thereof. 

 



 

 

RESIDENTIAL SITE PLAN REVIEW Resolution 1577 

 

Site plan review (required)  Actual costs for city 

engineer’s review 

 
CONNECTION FEES 

 

Residential Water Service (new construction) Chapter 90.06  $402 

Residential Sewer Service (new construction) Chapter 96.02  $402   

  

 

 

ELECTRICAL, MECHANICAL AND PLUMBING PERMIT FEES 
 

Dollar Volume of Work      Permit Fee 

Up to $1,500        $25 

$1,501-$5,000        $50 

$5,001-$25,000       $75  

$25,001-$50,000       $100 

$50,001-$75,000       $125 

$75,001-$100,000       $150 

$100,001-$125,000       $175 

Add $25.00 per every $25,000 of valuation thereafter 

 

OTHER PERMIT FEES 
Demolition Permit       $100 

Fence Permit        $25 

Sign Permit (Historic District only) Chapter 25.09(4)  $10 

Street Boring Permit Chapter 135.09(12)    $100 

House Mover Permit Chapter 123.06    $100 

 

 

INSPECTION FEES 
 (construction/electrical/plumbing/footings, etc.) 

 

Inspections outside of normal business hours  (Minimum charge – two hours) $47 per 

hour 

Re-inspection fees assessed under provisionsof Section 305.8   $47 per 

hour  

Inspections for which no fee is specifically indicated (Min. charge – 1/2 hour) $47 per 

hour 

Additional plan review required by changes, additions and inspections, or both $47 per 

hour 

(Minimum charge – 1/2 hour) 

For use of outside consultants for plan checking and inspections, or both  Actual Costs 



 

 

 
 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  June 25, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: Care Initiatives (Crestview) Easement Access and 

Fence Request. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones, City Administrator 

DATE:  June 21, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

Apparently, as a result from a lack of communication or miscommunication between Alliant 

Energy and Fehr Graham it was overlooked / discovered that there is no near-by public 

easement for utilities, which would be needed to supply power to the entire Cubby Park site.  

Currently, access to power can only be obtained through a private easement owned by Care 

Initiatives, or running utilities ¾ of mile to the nearest public easement on West Orange.  It 

is estimated that this could result in a substantial project increase (potentially $40,000).   

 

Dave Dixon, Vice President / Chief Financial Officer with Care Initiatives has offered 

granting easement access in exchange for a 6 foot tall solid PVC fence approximately 275 

feet in length being erected along the north end of the property (an anticipated project 

expense of potentially $12,000).  

 

Staff has always maintained that building a berm instead of a fence would be preferred; 

however, in the event that the ultimate result is a fence, staff recommends building the fence 

on Crestview property to avoid future maintenance issues and obligations. 

 

Staff is seeking direction as to the City Council desire to pursue an easement exchange 

approach, or the 3 quarter of a mile line extension approach. 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek City Council Direction 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 8 



 

 

Potential Fence Location 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Proposed Fence Location 

Over-flow Parking 

(Grass / Gravel)  



 

 

 
 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  June 25, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1725 – Authorizing the City Administrator to enter into 

a Settlement Agreement and Release with French-Reneker 

Associates Inc. Engineers & Surveyors of Fairfield, Iowa. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones, City Administrator 

DATE:  June 21, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

The City acquired a Resource Enhancement and Protection (REAP) grant for a recreational 

trail bridge.  The trail was to be 10-foot wide concrete surface and about 400 feet long.  The 

trail was to connect the West Branch Village Park Sub-division with the existing Hoover 

Nature Trail.  The project engineers could not get the Department of Natural Resources to 

grant a permit for the project. 

 

The settlement is a repayment for engineering services rendered in trying to get this project 

designed and permitted. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 9 



 

 

 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 

RESOLUTION 1725 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR TO INTO A 

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND RELEASE WITH FRENCH-RENEKER 

ASSOCIATES INC. ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS OF FAIRFIELD, IOWA 

 

 

WHEREAS, The City of West Branch entered into contract with French-Reneker 

Associates, Inc., Engineers & Surveyors of Fairfield, Iowa; for the services designing a multi-

span wooden bridge to the standards that a flood plain permit from the Department of Natural 

Resources would be obtained; and    

 

 WHEREAS, a hydraulic analysis and flood plain permit were needed for the project 

and French Reneker Associates could meet the requirements of the Department of Natural 

Resources at the location the project intended and at the cost the project was budgeted.  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the West Branch City Council hereby 

agrees and authorizes the City Administrator enter into a settlement agreement and release to 

have a lump sum of $17,000 the City of West Branch paid French Reneker Associates for 

engineering services, returned to the City.  This agreement is between the City of West Branch 

and French Reneker Associates, Inc., Engineers & Surveyors of Fairfield, Iowa and will 

commence upon this date June 25th 2018.   

 
* * * * * * * * 

Passed and approved this 25th day of June, 2018. 

   

  

      

_________________________________ 

                                                         Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  June 25, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: First Reading of a New Ordinance: Planned Unit Development 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

DATE:  June 21, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND: 

The origins of PUDs in American communities can be traced to British movements during the 

1950s. The developments in Britain's new communities dealt with the locations of industrial 

elements and how they were publicly dictated before building ever began in order to uphold 

an economic base. 

PUD as a regulatory process is a means of land regulation which promotes large scale, unified land 

development by means of mid-range, realistic programs in chase of physically curable, social and 

economic deficiencies in land and cityscapes. Where appropriate, this development control promotes: 

 A mixture of both land uses and dwelling types with at least one of the land uses being regional in 

nature 

 The clustering of residential land uses providing public and common open space 

 Increased administrative discretion to a local professional planning staff while setting aside present 

land use regulations and rigid plat approval processes 

 The enhancement of the bargaining process between the developer and government municipalities 

which in turn strengthens the municipality's site plan review and control over development for 

potentially increased profits due to land efficiency, multiple land uses, and increased residential 

densities. 

Frequently, PUDs take on a variety of forms ranging from small clusters of houses combined with open 

spaces to new and developing towns with thousands of residents and various land uses. However, the 

definition of a PUD does not take into consideration these types of developments unless they fit into a 

category of size ranging from 100 to 200 acres (40 to 81 ha). In a PUD the property owner owns the 

land the dwelling sits on 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 10 

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Industry
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Economic_base


 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 


